APPELLANT'S RECORD EXCERPTS 
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Attached below, pursuant to Rule 30 of the Mississippi Rules of Appellate 
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Respectfully submitted, 

Estate of Cherry M. Deiorio, by and 
through Chad Deiorio, Administrator 
of the Estate of Cherry M. Deiorio, for 
the use and benefit of the Estate of 
Cherry M. Deiorio, Deceased, and for the 
use and benefit of the wrongful the death 
beneficialj4its of C~erry M. Deiorio, Deceased 

By: 1_ /" .,-~p'''I 
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Post Office Box 17107 
Hattiesburg, MS 39404-7107 
601-545-7363//601-545-7364 facsimile 
ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Appellant's Record 
Excerpts has been furnished by United States Mail, postage prepaid, to the following on 
this the 5th day of October 2006: 

Hon. Lisa Dodson 
Harrison County Circuit Court Judge 
P. O. Box 7575 
Gulfport, MS 39506 

Sam Morris, Esq. 
Wise, Carter, Child & Caraway, P.A. 
600 Heritage Building 
401 E. Capitol St. 
Jackson, MS 39201 

it 

Lynda C. Carter, Esq. 
Nicole Huffman, Esq. 
Wise, Carter, Child & Caraway, P.A. 
154 Porter Avenue 
Biloxi, Mississippi 39530 

Daniel Dias, Esq. 
Mancuso & Dias, P.A. 
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 510 
Tampa, FL 33607-2393 
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CCUS63R 
EMLA 

******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 8 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

CASE NO: A24010100323 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
OSlS03NOTICE OF VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD E. CIRCEO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
ELIZABETH (HERNDON) SPRENGER 

OS2903 SECOND SUPP RESPONSES TO INTERROG/REQUEST FOR PROD F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

NOTICE OF SERVICE 
091603 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON AG'S OFFICE BY pis/PIS 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
Completed: 9/0S/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS AT AG'S OFFICE 

091703. SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON COMMUNITY LIVING CENTER BY piS/PIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

Completed: 9/0S/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

C/O VIRGIE JACKSON RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
091703 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON MICHAEL ALBERT BY pis/pis 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
Completed: 9/0S/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
CIO JESSICA CRAWFORD RECORDS CUSTODIAN 

091703 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON ST. DOMINIC BY PIS/PIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

Completed: 9/0S/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

CIO TINA JONES RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
091703 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON ADELE THEIL BY piS/PIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
Completed: 9/0S/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
C/O LISA MCCAY RECORDS CUSTODIAN 

091703 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON RIVER OAKS BY p/S/P/S 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

Completed: 9/0S/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

C/O TONY JONES RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
091S03 LETTER FROM ATTORNEY TO CLERK 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
092503 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON BOYINGTON BY P/S/p/s 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
Completed: S/14/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
092603 RESPONSE TO MOTION F/B WILLIAM MCDONOUGH 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC'· 
. RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COMPE4~ .. ..... J.. ; •. , 

,.;: '. --:-;- -. . -.- ._-.. -. ... . . 

9 

.- -" i n<lreby· !:eit!fy that the above and foregoing 
~on5titute$ a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parker 
~ircuit cou~~ . /! 

"),. ,V i i f3 <": )'T!//~ D.C. _ s> , 



CCU863R 
EMLA 

******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 9 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

CASE NO: A24010100323 

NOTICE OF SERVICE 
100103 3RD SUPP ANSWER TO INTERR &.REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
NOTICE OF SERVICE 

100603 JURY TRIAL 
Begin Time: 9:30 AM End Time: 5:00 PM Completed: 10/06/03 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
Court Room: GCIR3 Judge KOSTA N. VLAHOS 

Comments:SET BY ORDER 
CONT. BY AGREEMENT 

101003 SUBPOENA DUCUS TECUM RETURNED BY pis/pis 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

Completed: 9/29/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

RUTH MONTALVO -RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
101003 SUBPOENA DUCUS TECUM RETUNED BY pis/piS 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
Completed: 9/29/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL GPT RECORDS CUSTODIAN 

101003 SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM RETURNED BY pis/pis 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

Completed: 9/29/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

DONALD WEAVER MD RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
101003 SUBPOENA DUCUS TECUM RETURNED BY pis/pis 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
Completed: 9/29/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
STEPHEN JOHNS MD RECORDS CUSTODIAN 

101003 SUBPOENA DUCUS TECUM RETURNED BY pis/PIS 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

Completed: 9/26/03 
Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 

GARDEN PARK MEDICAL CENTER- RECORDS CUSTODIAN 
111003 SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM RETURNED BY pis/piS 

Litigant: DELTA HEALTH GROUP INC 
Completed: 9/26/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
111003 SUBPOENA DECUS TECUM RETURNED ON SHERRY DE IORIO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
Completed: 10/03/03 

Disposition: SERVICE RETURN 
120403 NOTICE OF VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
OF SCOTT BELL-TONY HAMRICK-

, hereby certify that the above and foregoing 
constitutes a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parker 
,~ircUit Court-rle~ Ii 

g" .k1I!fJ~ rY;{)c'LD.C. 
10 



CCU863R 
EMLA 

CASE NO: 

******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 10 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

A24010100323 

012204 NOTICE OF VIDEO DEPOSITION OF SCOTT BELL F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

012704 RENOTICE OF VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

OF SCOTT BELL 
013004 NOTICE OF TAKING VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
SHELLY KNIGHT AND SHEILA WILLIAMS 

013004 RENOTICE OF TAKING VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

GENE TRIPLETT AND DANA FOSTER 
021104 MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER F/B WILLIAM MCDONOUGH 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
031804 NOTICE OF HEARING ON MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER F/B WILLIAM MCDO~OUGH 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
031904 RESPONSE TO MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER F/B CHRISTINE ALTHOFF 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
032404 MOTION TO COMPEL F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
MOTION TO COMPEL DEPO ANSWERS AND FOR SANCTIONS 

032604 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OF VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: UNIDENTIFIED ENTITIES 1 THROUGH 10 

032904 NOTICE OF HEARING F/B RICHARD CIRCEO 
Litigant: UNIDENTIFIED ENTITIES 1 THROUGH 10 

040504 RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COMPEL F/B WILLIAM MCDONOGH 
Litigant: BELL, SCOTT J 

041604 REPLY TO RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COMPEL F/B CHRISTINE ALTHOFF 
Litigant: UNIDENTIFIED ENTITIES 1 THROUGH 10 

REPLY TO MOTION TO COMPEL DEPOSITION ANSWERS AND FOR SANCTIONS COUNTER 
MOlTON TO DEEM DEPOSITION TERMONATED ALTERNATIVELY COUNTER MOTION FOR 
SANCTIONS AND FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND MOTION TO COMPEL ATTENDENCE 
OF JIM WILKES ESQ TO ATTEND HEARING ON PLT MOTION TO COMPEL 

042704 MOTIONS 
Begin Time: 9:30 AM End Time: 5:00 PM Completed: 04/27/04 
Litigant: UNIDENTIFIED ENTITIES 1 THROUGH 10 
Court Room: GCIR3 Judge : KOSTA N. VLAHOS 

Comments:MOTION TO COMPEL & FOR SANCTIONS AND DEFT'S MOTION FOR PROT. 
ORDER NOTICED BY RICHARD CIRECO 

092104 ENTRY OF APPEARANCE OF/F/B JAMES MCHUGH 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

092104 ENTRY OF APPEARANCE OF MICHAEL FULLER JR F/B JAMES MCHUGH 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

121704 NOTICE OF APPEARANCE AS COUNSEL F/B JAMES THORNTON 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

122304 PLT'S COMBINED SET OF DISCOVERY CONCERNING INS MATTERS F/B J THORNTON 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

1 1 

• tt:lf!lDli certify that the above and foregoing 
GOnstltutes a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parlier 
~Circuit Court rle~, .A 

By ~j/~ <' '2)(;('1:. D.C. 
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CCU863R 
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******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 11 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

CASE NO: A24010100323 

NOTICE OF SERVICE 
012805 NOTICE OF SERVICE 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFFS REQUEST FOR ADMISSION CONCERNING INSURANCE 
COVERAGE 

020305 NOTICE OF SERVICE 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFFS COMBINED DISCOVERY CONCERNING INSURANCE 
COVERAGE 

032905 NOTICE OF DEPOSITION/TO BE TAKEN ON SCOTT BELL ON 4/11/05 AT 9AM 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

040505 WITHDRAWAL OF NOTICE OF DEPOSITION OF SCOTT BELL F/B W MCDONOUGH, JR 
Litigant: DELTA HEALTH GROUP INC 

053006 REQUEST FOR ISSUANCE OF SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM F/B ANNETTE BULGER MATHIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

053006 SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM ISSUED TO MR. TIM HOWARD OF MS ATTY GENERAL OFC 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

MLD BK TO ATTY FOR SERVICE 
060806 ENTRY OF APPEARANCE F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHAD 
060806 ENTRY OF APPEARANCE F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHAD 
061906 ENTRY OF APPEARANCE F/B LYNDA CARTER 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
062806 MOTION FOR SCHEDULING ORDER AND TRAIL SETTING F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
070506 PLT'S MOTION TO COMPEL DEF'S ANS & RESPONSES TO INT & F/B A. MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
AND 1 ST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION 

070706 MOTION TO WITHDRAW AS COUNSEL OF RECORD F/B WILLIAM MCDONOUGH 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

071006 NOTICE OF HEARING ON 7-17-06 F/B ANNETTTE BUGLER MATHIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHAD 

071306 RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SCHEDULING ORDER F/B LYNDA CARTER 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

AND TRIAL SETTING 
082406 NOTICE OF DEPOSITION F/B LYNDA CARTER OF CHAD DEIORIO, ELIZABETH 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
RULTAND, BRANDY DEIORIO, MICHELLE IRBY ON 9/20/06 THRU 9/21/06 

083006 PLT'S SUPPLEMENTAL REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION TO DEF, F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

DELTA HEALTH GROUP, INC 
091106 DEF'S SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSES TO PLT'S INTERROGATORIES F/B NICOLE 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
HUFFMAN AND FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION 

100306 DELTA HEALTH GROUP'S RESPONSES TO PLT'S F/B NICOLE HUFFMAN 
.- .. '. 

12 

i ilereby certify that the above and foregoing 
constitutes a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parker 
iCircurc co~rt C~rfl: 

By _1M _ (3bt ry;' D.C. 



CCU863R 
EMLA 

******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 12 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

CASE NO: A24010100323 

Litigant: DELTA HEALTH GROUP INC • SUPPLEMENTAL REQUEST TO PRODUCE 
110706 NOTICE OF TRIAL SETTING 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHAD 
Quantity: 1 

DEIORIO, CHAD 
111606 PLT'S MOTION TO COMPEL DEPOSITIONS F/B ANNETTE BULGER MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
111606 AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING F/B ANNETTE BULGER MATHIS ON JANUARY 12 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
TH AT 9:00 

111606 NOTICE OF HEARING F/B ANNETTE BULGER MATHIS ON JANUARY 12TH AT 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

9:00 
111606 NOTICE OF TAKING VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B ANNETTE MATHIS ON NANCY HOLSTON 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
DECEMBER 13TH AT 10:00 

111606 NOTICE OF TAKING VIDEO DEPOSITION F/B ANNETTE MATHIS ON TOMMY HUSLEY 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

ON DECEMBER 15TH AT 9:00 
112006 RE-NOTICE OF DEPOSITION F/B NICOLE HUFFMAN OF CHAD DEIORIO ON 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
NOVEMBER 21ST AT 9:30 

112706 DEF'S DESIGNATION OF EXPERT WITNESSES F/B LYNDA CARTER 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

120406 NOTICE OF APPEARANCE FOR INTERVENER, F/B JEFFERY PIERCE ROYAL 
Litigant: ROYAL SURPLUS LINES INSURANCE COMP 

SURPLUS LINES INSURANCE COMPANY 
120406 VERIFIED APPLICATION FOR PRO HAC VICE F/B JEFFERY PIERCE 

Litigant: ROYAL SURPLUS LINES INSURANCE COMP 
120406 MOTION FOR ADMISSION PRO HAC VICE F/B JEFFERY PIERCE WITH ORDER 

Litigant: ROYAL SURPLUS LINES INSURANCE COMP 
SENT TO BACK 

120706 LETTER FROM SUPREME COURT CLERK'S PRO HAC VICE STATEMENT 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

121106 MEMORANDUM OF AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF SCOTT BELL F/B LYNDA CARTER 
Litigant: BELL, SCOTT J 

AND ELIZABETH SPRENGER'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
121106 NOTICE OF HEARING F/B LYNDA CARTER 

Litigant: BELL, SCOTT J 
121106 SCOTT BELL AND ELIZABETH SPRENGER'S MOTION TO DISMISS F/B LYNDA CARTER 

Litigant: BELL, SCOTT J 
121106 LETTER FROM ATTY JEFFREY PIERCE STATING A COpy OF MS. BAR'S 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
ACKNOLEDGEMNT OF PAYMENT AS REQUIRE BY RULE 46(B) (5) 

121306 PLT'S FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSES TO DEF'S F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 

13 

! hsreby certify that the above and foregoing 
constitutes a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parker 
~ircuit Court C~ , 

( '~~ By xl I&. (" \3,/1~ D.C. 
/ 



CCU863R 
EMLA 

******* CIRCUIT COURT JUDICIAL 1 ******* PAGE#: 13 
CASE HISTORY LISTING 6/29/07 10:47:14 

CASE NO: A24010100323 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
COMBINED INTERROGATORIES & REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION (BY NOTICE OF 
SERVICE) 

121406 VERIFIED APPLICATION F/B LYNDA HUFFMAN FOR ADMISSION OF COUNSEL 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

PRO HAC VICE 
121806 SERVICE OF CLERK'S STATEMENT AND PRO HAC VICE REPORT FIB LYNDA CARTER 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
121906 PLT'S RESPONSE TO DEF'S SCOTT BELL F/B ANNETTE BULGER MATHIS 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
AND ELIZABETH SPRENGER'S MOTION TO DISMISS 

122006 PLT'S FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSES TO DEF'S F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

COMBINED INTERROGATORIES AND REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION 
122706 DEF'S ITEMIZATION OF FACTS F/B NICOLE HUFFMAN IN SUPPORT OF THEIR 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

122706 DEF'S MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT F/B LYNDA 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

CARTER 
122706 DEF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT F/B NICOLE HUFFMAN 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
122706 NOTICE OF HEARING FIB NICOLE HUFFMAN ON JANUARY 12TH AT 9:00 

Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 
122906 SUPPLEMENT TO PLT'S MOTION TO COMPEL FIB ANNETTE MATHIS DEF'S 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
ANSWERS AND RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES AND FIRST REQUEST FOR 
PRODUCTION 

122906 NOTICE OF HEARING FIB ANNETTE MATHIS ON JANUARY 12TH AT 9:00 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

010207 DEF'S REPLY TO PLT'S RESPONSE TO THE MOTION TO DISMISS F/B MARY PERRY 
Litigant: BELL, SCOTT J 

010807 PLT'S SIXTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONES TO DEFENDANTS' F/B ANNETTE MATHIS 
Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 

COMBINED INTERROAGTORIES AND REQ/FOR PRO/DOCS (NOTICE OF SERVICE 
OF DISCOVERY) 

010907 ORDER FOR PRO HAC VICE- DANIEL E DIAS, ESQ SHALL BE AND HEREBY IS 
Volume #: 0446 Begin Page#: 0076 End page#: 0076 

ADMITTED TO PRACTICE PRO HAC VICE IN THE CAUSE 
011007 PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE FIB ANNETTE MATHIS TO DEF'S MOTION FOR 

Litigant: DEIORIO, CHERRY M 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

011107 DEF'S REBUTTAL TO PLT'S RESPONSE TO THE MOTION FIB NICOLE HUFFMAN 
Litigant: PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST INC 

FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT • 
011107 LETTER FROM ATTORNEY"rr:?-";..~UP.~EM!< COURT FOR PRO HAC VICE APPLICATION 

14 

: fJ"retly certijy that the above and foregoing 
constitutes a true and correct copy. 

Gayle Parker 
CIrcuit Court Clerk 

/1 'I If ; , I " I': n '4l2tjo By _ k...JfM _, ~t; D.C. 



OCT-15-2001 14:56 
P.03/03 

IN Tu.E CIRCUIT COURT OF BAJUUSON COUNTY, MISslSSlPl"I 
lImS'I' .)UDICL\L DlS'IRlcr 

CHERRY M. DElORlO, by aDd through 
CHAD DElORIa be)" Dext rriond 
for the UBc and benefit of ClIERllY M. DElORlO 

"e. 

PENSACOLA REALm TRUST, INC.; 
DF..LTA HEALTH GROUP. INC.; 
sCOOT J. BELL: ELlZABETH 1.. (HERNDON) 
SPRENCER; JOHN DOES 1 T!IROUGH 10; 
aDd UNJDENTlPlED ENTITIES 1 THROUGJJ 10 
("" to THE BOYINGTON Nt1RS:Il'iG CENTER aIkJ .. 
1'HE BOYINGTON NURSING FAClLITV) 

PLAlNTJlIFS 

CAUSE NO •• Al401-201-313 

DEFENDANTS 

ORDER EXTENDiNG lIME FOR RESPONSE TO DISCOVERY AND 
SUSPENBION OF DISCOVERY J)MJ)IJNE UNplliB RVLIIi 4.01(4)

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