IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

CHERRY M. DEIORIO, BY AND THROUGH CHAD DEIORIO HER NEXT FRIEND FOR THE USE AND BENEFIT OF CHERRY M. DEIORIO

APPELLANT

VS

CAUSE NO. 2007-CA-00537

PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST, INC.; DELTA HEALTH GROUP, INC.; SCOTT J. BELL; ELIZABETH L. (HERNDON) SPRENGER; JOHN DOES 1 THROUGH 10; AND UNIDENTIFIED ENTITIES 1 THROUGH 10 (AS TO THE BOYINGTON NURSING CENTER a/k/a THE BOYINGTON NURSING FACILITY)

APPELLEES

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF HARRISON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

BRIEF OF THE APPELLEES, PENSACOLA HEALTH TRUST, INC.,
DELTA HEALTH GROUP, INC., SCOTT J. BELL, ELIZABETH L. (HERNDON)
SPRENGER, BOYINGTON NURSING CENTER a/k/a THE BOYINGTON

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

Plaintiff also cites *Warren v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals Corp.*, 783 So.2d 735 (Miss. Ct. App. 2002). In the *Warren* case, Plaintiff objected to the testimony of an expert called by Sandoz who had not specifically been designated by Sandoz. However, the court noted that Sandoz had timely filed a "blanket designation" stating that it might call any expert designated by Warren or any co-defendant, but had not simply listed any expert by name. The Court of Appeals held that the blanket designation shifted the burden to Warren to seek further supplementation and, as Warren did not, the Court of Appeals found there was no error in the trial court's admission of the expert's testimony. *Id.* at 743.

As noted by the trial court here, this case is distinguishable from *Warren*. "There has been no prior designation of [Deiorio's Experts] by anyone. Defendants had no information about them from any source before December 11, 2006. There was no general or blanket designation to put Defendants on notice that they needed to seek supplementation regarding the [proposed experts]". (R. at 703).

Similarly, the case of *Caracci v. International Paper Company* does not stand for any authority involving the Rule. 699 So.2d 546 (Miss. 1997). In *Caracci*, the plaintiff's discovery responses *identified* what experts plaintiff would call at trial. *Id.* at 547. While, defendant thought that the identification of the consulting firm as experts was insufficient, he informed plaintiff's counsel that he would address the issue later. *Id.* Plaintiff subsequently filed an unsworn supplementation attaching a damage report to its expert witness interrogatory response. *Id.* at 550. The trial court refused to permit plaintiff's experts at trial due to the untimely designation, and the Supreme Court found this to be too harsh a sanction. *Id.* at 557.

The Court found that Caracci had been aware of the deficiencies when plaintiff submitted his response regarding his trial experts. *Id.* The Court reasoned that "'[w]here an answer may **at worst** be held 'evasive,' the discovering party must seek and obtain an order compelling a more detailed response as a precondition of obtaining Rule 37(b) sanctions. .." *Id.* (citation omitted).

Clearly, *Caracci* is not applicable to the instant matter. Defendants have not sought Rule 37(b) sanctions; instead, they moved for summary judgment due to Plaintiff's failure to timely designate under Rule 4.04(A). Here, Plaintiff did not file an "evasive" discovery answer, rather, Plaintiff specifically stated that it had no experts and

never timely supplemented the response.

As such, the remedy of refusal to allow the testimony of Plaintiff's experts rests solely in Rule 4.04(A), and the Rule does not state, and its language cannot be contorted into the conclusion, that an aggrieved party must first file a Motion to Compel in order to obtain the relief provided by the Rule. As *Caracci*'s rationale is grounded in Rule 37(b), it cannot be applied to the instant case.

Rule 4.04 is clear in that it contains both a mandate and a remedy for non-compliance. In the event a party does not timely and properly designate his experts at least 60 days prior to trial, and does not show special circumstances for his failure to so, the trial court cannot permit the experts to testify at trial. It does not require the Court to look to other remedies or to other cases to determine what the proper course of action is for a party who violates the rule, absent special circumstances. If the rule is not strictly complied with, then the untimely designated expert shall not be allowed to testify at trial. "To hold otherwise would render . . . the rule meaningless and one which we should simply judicially abrogate if it is not going to be enforced. A rule which is not enforced is no rule at all." *Salts v. Gulf Nat. Life Ins. Co.*, 872 So.2d 667, 674 (Miss. 2004).

Even so, the trial court considered, and declined, the Plaintiff's argument with respect to the case of *Thompson v. Patino*⁶, 784 So.2d 220 (Miss. 2001). In *Thompson*, unlike in the instant case, no trial date had been set. Moreover, as the trial court noted "Thompson pursued her case, not perfectly, but fairly diligently from filing until dismissal." *Id.* at 226. (R. at 703). However, "Deiorio's supplementation was not

⁶ Again, this case did not deal with Rule 4.04.

seasonable . . . It cannot be said that Deiorio has diligently pursued his case; that he supplemented in detail; or that he has presented arguable questions of fact. Further, the Mississippi Supreme Court has specifically held that the *Thompson* decision 'is clearly limited to the facts of that case and does not stand for the proposition that a trial court may never strike an expert affidavit in response to a discovery violation.' *Bowie v. Monfort Jones Memorial Hospital*, 861 So.2d 1037, 1047, ¶ 12 (Miss. 2003)." (R. at 704).

D. The Court did not Commit Clear Error in Ruling that Plaintiff Could not Submit Expert Testimony due to His Failure to Seasonably Supplement his Interrogatory Responses

In addition to excluding Plaintiff's expert testimony because of non-compliance with Rule 4.04(A), the trial court also held the testimony should be excluded because Plaintiff's supplementation "was not seasonable and did not give Defendants sufficient time to prepare before trial." (R. at 704). Seasonable supplementation means "soon after new information is known and far enough in advance for the other side to prepare." *Thompson v. Patino*, 784 So.2d 220 (Miss. 2001)⁷.

As noted earlier herein, Defendants propounded discovery to Plaintiff in 2001. (R. at 6). Plaintiff responded that same year and stated expert witnesses had not yet been determined. (R. at 7 and 603). Even though Plaintiff retained experts in 2003 or 2004, (T.R. at 35), he waited until mere days before the trial to file any supplementation. (R. at 603).

Plaintiff clearly did not file "soon after" his experts were known to him, or far enough in advance for the Defendants to prepare for them, and thus did not seasonably

⁷ See further discussion of *Thompson*, *infra*.

supplement. As the trial court succinctly and accurately noted, "a plaintiff in a medical malpractice case who waits three years to respond to expert interrogatories may expect her case to be dismissed with prejudice." *Id.* at 224. (*citing Palmer, supra* at 1356-63)(R. at 703). The trial court's ruling to that effect was thus not clear error.

II. Plaintiff Raises Issues for the First Time on Appeal, which Issues Cannot be Considered by the Court

Plaintiff raises, for the first time on appeal, two new issues. First, Plaintiff raises the issue of an alleged suspension of URCCC 4.04 based upon the anticipation of a scheduling order that, while ordered, was never published⁸. Nowhere in Plaintiff's prehearing motions or briefs, at the hearing on Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment, or anytime before the trial court did Plaintiff raise this issue. (R. and T.R. in their entirety). Second, Plaintiff now attempts to raise the issue that the trial court had not properly set the matter for trial– despite the fact that all parties acknowledged the trial date, the Court Administrator had served Plaintiff with a Written Notice of Trial Setting or Resetting, and that all parties, including the court, were proceeding under the knowledge that the trial was set to begin on January 22, 2007. (See Supplement to Record filed by Defendants, R. at 12, A.B. and T.R. in their entirety). In addition to

⁸ In fact, the suspension was only to the discovery deadline portion of Rule 4.04 and the suspension was based upon the "joint motion, *ore tenus*, of the parties for suspension of the discovery deadline under Rule. 4.04(A)." As the Court is aware, under Rule 4.04, discovery is to be completed within 90 days unless extended by Order of the Court. In the instant case, the trial court did extend this 90 day deadline, but never stated that the expert designation requirement was suspended, nor did the Court ever address the designation requirement at the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment.

being disingenuous⁹, both of these arguments are procedurally barred and should not be considered by this Court. *Alexander v. Daniel*, 904 So.2d 172, 183 (Miss. 2005).

It has long been the rule of our State that matters brought for the first time on appeal are procedurally barred from consideration and cannot form the basis 10 of the reversal of a lower court's ruling. Id. at 183. ("We need not consider matters raised for the first time on appeal, which practice would have the practical effect of depriving the trial court of the opportunity to first rule on the issue, so that we can then review such trial court ruling under the appropriate standard of review.") Further, even if these were otherwise valid arguments, which Defendants contend they are not, the appellate courts cannot consider issues raised for the first time on appeal as it is "a practice that is not permitted since it is the role of an appellate court to review alleged errors committed during the trial of the case rather than to consider matters, however meritorious, that were not presented to the trial court for consideration." Aron v. Reid, 850 So.2d 108. 113 (Miss. 2002)(citation omitted). See also, Boutwell v. State, 143 So. 479, 482 (Miss. 1932)("the trial court cannot be put in error, unless it has had an opportunity of committing error.") Since these arguments were not addressed to the trial court, they cannot form the basis for this Court to find error.

CONCLUSION

Uniform Rule of Circuit and County Court 4.04(A) mandates a remedy for non-

⁹ The Plaintiff in his pre-hearing briefs, at the hearing, and in the letter he provided to the trial court following the hearing, acknowledged the January trial date as valid and never disputed that Rule 4.04(A) was in effect.

¹⁰ Even though this issue is procedurally barred, as Plaintiff has failed to cite authority in support of this argument, it cannot be considered by the Court in any

compliance when a party fails to timely designate experts, which is the preclusion of the submission of expert testimony by the violating party. A violating party can only obtain relief from the remedy of preclusion of expert testimony where it can provide evidence of "special circumstances" for not timely disclosing the experts. The Rule does not require aggrieved parties to demonstrate prejudice nor that they first file Motions to Compel, Motions for Continuance or other similar Motions in order to obtain the relief provided in the Rule.

It remains uncontested that Plaintiff failed to disclose his experts at least 60 days prior to the January 22, 2007 trial date as required by the Rule. The trial court thus did not commit clear legal error in ruling that Plaintiff had no required expert testimony to support his case. Its determination that Defendants were entitled to summary judgment as a result thereof is clearly correct.

Even if the trial court was incorrect in its analysis under Rule 4.04(A), the trial court properly found that Plaintiff did not seasonably supplement his discovery despite the fact that he retained two experts sometime between 2003 and 2004, and Plaintiff did not identify them until December 11, 2006—42 days before trial. This is not seasonable supplementation under Mississippi law. Furthermore, as additional grounds for dismissal, the trial court properly found that the affidavit of Dr. Karp failed to provide expert testimony that established the standard of care and, that within a reasonable degree of medical probability, there was both a breach of that standard to the Plaintiff and that breach was the proximate cause of injury to the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff offers no substantive argument to refute the judge's findings with regard to the sufficiency of the

affidavit on its face. As such, the trial court's determination that it was insufficient as a matter of law was correct and must be upheld.

Finally, Plaintiff's attempts to argue issues not presented to the trial court, and/or unsupported by case law, should be ignored by this Court and are procedurally barred.

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